CR D A Capital Region
Development Authority

Agenda
CRDA Board Meeting
Thursday, September 17, 2020
Go-To-Meeting

3:00pm — 3:05pm e C(Call to Order & Minutes

- Draft Minutes June 25, 2020 *
3:05pm — 3:10pm e Mayors Reports
3:10pm — 3:30pm e Audit & Annual Report Adoption

- FY2019-20 Audit Report — Presented by Cohn Reznick
CRDA and Rentschler Field Stadium
- Annual Report *

3:30pm — 3:55pm e Venue Update
- Budget & Operations Proposed Changes
- Rentschler
+  MLS Agreement
- Dillon Stadium
- Connecticut Convention Center
- XL Center

3:55pm — 4:00pm e Finance Report
- Monthly Financial update

4:00pm — 4:10pm e Housing & Neighborhood Committee
- COVID related Loan modifications *
- Allocation
+  Pratt St. Initiative
Phase II - Temple St. (new allocation) *
Phase I - 99 Pratt/196 Trumbull St. (modification) *

4:10pm — 4:15pm e Regional & Economic Development Committee
- Regional Market Leases

4:15pm — 4:30pm e Executive Director
- NMTC Application Grant *
- CUP - EMCOR Extension
- Bushnell South- planning effort
- Bushnell South Parking Garage
- Front Street - Ted’s Closing
- Construction update

4:30pm e Adjourn

* Vote item




DRAFT

Minutes

June 25, 2020




Capital Region Development Authority
100 Columbus Boulevard
5% Floor
Hartford, CT 06103
Thursday, June 25, 2020
(reschedule from June 18, 2020)
3:00 pm — Conference Call
(The Board Meeting was held via GoToMeeting with public access)

Board Members Present: Chairwoman Suzanne Hopgood; Mayor Luke Bronin; Joseph Giulietti;
David Jorgensen; Alexandra Daum; Seila Mosquera-Bruno; David Robinson; Mayor Marcia Leclerc

Board Members Absent: Andy Bessette; Joanne Berger Sweeney; Melissa McCaw

CRDA Staff Present: Michael Freimuth; Joseph Geremia; KJm Ha1t Robert Saint; Terryl Mitchell
Smith; Anthony Lazzaro; Jennifer Gaffey

Guests: Mayor of West Hartford Sherri Cantor; T_Q\Km’Ménager of West_ Hartford Matthew Hart

Minutes

The minutes of the May 21, 2020 CRDA Boald Meetmg were moved by Dave J01 gensen seconded by
David Robinson and approved.

West Hartford Presentation

May01 Cantor, along with Mr, Hart mtroduced themselves and prov1ded a brief introduction about the
Town of West Hartfo1d The town is cons1de1mg the purchase of the former UConn Campus and would

Finance

CRDA CFO Joseph Geremia reported on the follbWing- June 2020 Financial Operating Statistics and the
CRDA 2020 Budget Summary with Executive Director Michael Freimuth also commenting.

CT Convention Cefiter — April/May 2020
May stats: 178 event days: held YTD with YTD attendance at 229,500
Apr. financials: Event revenue $615 000 unfavorable to budget
Expenses $2_34, 000 favorable to budget with facility maintenance unfavorable to
budget effset with savings in personnel due to furloughed staff
Net Income $381,000 unfavorable to budget
Total year projection $1,099,200 unfavorable to budget

Cash Flow: Payables aged at 120 days
CRDA advance of $750,000
Cash flow to last to early Sept. if FY21 appropriation available in July

CRDA Parking Facilities — April/May 2020
May stats: Utilization at 75% unfavorable to budget by 5%
Monthly rate customers unfavorable to prior year by 1,500 at 33,700 YTD
Transient customers unfavorable to prior year by 125,800 at 314,600 YTD
Apr. financials: Revenue unfavorable to budget by $740,000

1 o
()




Expenses $356,000 favorable compared to budget due to savings in utilities, snow
removal, and personnel due to furloughed staff

Net Income $384,000 unfavorable to budget

Total year projection $954,900 unfavorable to budget

Church Street Garage - April/May 2020

May stats:

Apr. financials:

Utilization 2% favorable to budget at 74%

Monthly rate customers favorable to budget by 345 at 12,500 YTD

Transient customers unfavorable to budget by 6,300 at 8,500 YTD

Revenue unfavorable to budget by $112,000

Expenses $28,000 favorable compared to budget due to savings in utilities, snow
removal, and personnel due to furloughed staff offset with increased facility
maintenance AR

Net Income $84,000 unfavorable to budget

Total year projection $224,000 unfavorabl_e t_q_budget

XL Center - April/May 2020

May stats:
Apr. financials:

Cash Flow: [. .

101 event days held YTD with: YTD attendance at 424 500

Event revenue $1,078,000 unfavorable to budget, of which $799,800 is attributed to
a lower than budgeted number of concerts and two underpe1 forming concerts,
$99,100 is attributed to unfavorable attendance at UCONN basketball, $88,400 is
attributed to family events, with the 1ema1n1ng unfavorable variarice attributed to
F&B over all events, offset slightly with a $1 04,300 favorable variance attributed to
the USA women’s basketball and hockey games held

Hockey operations $214 700 unfayorable to budget

Operating expenses $931,300 favorable:to budget due to event operating expense
savings as ‘well as savings in personnel due to. vacant position furloughed staff
Other income $23I 400 unfavmable to budget due to lower sponsorship renewals

,Total yea1 p1 Q]GCthI’l $1, 449 300 unfavmable to budget
'Payables aged at 150 days :

CRDA advance of $750,000 -
Cash flow: to last to’ mld August if FY21 appropriation available in July

P&W Stadmm at. Rentsehlel Fleld Ap111/May 2020

May stats:
Apr. financials:

"'--84 event days held YTD with YTD attendance at 86,700

Event revenue $398 900 unfavorable to budget of which $265,000 is attributed to
lower than budgeted UCONN football attendance with the remainder attributed to
the over-all F&B department

Expenses $156 000 favorable compared to budget due to personnel and
maintenance savings

Net income $264,500 unfavorable to budget

Total year projection of $903,700 loss unfavorable to budget by $365,900

CT Regional Market

Stats:
Activity:

Apr. financials:

82 warehouse units and restaurant — Occupancy: 78% with 13 tenants
Farmers’” Market opened for 2020 season on May 2

Property Management company to start in July

Capital repairs and improvements completed with available funds
CRDA operating budget effective January 1, 2020

Operating revenue of $262,900 even with budget




Operating expenses of $142,400 favorable to budget due to savings in facility
mgmt. fee, snow removal, and repairs & maintenance
Net income of $120,500 favorable to budget by $95,700

Dillon Stadium — Calendar Year - April 2020
Calendar year revised operating expense budget of $250,000
Apr. financials: Operating expenses of $71,200 (28% actual vs. 33% of revised annual budget)
Capital reserve balance: $21,000

Fiscal Year 2021 Budgets

FY2021 Budget Process
1. Venues prepared draft budgets (March through May) : '
2. CRDA staff review draft budgets with Venue staff followed by appropriate adjustments (May)
3. CRDA Board Finance Committee & members 1ev1ew budgets with CRDA staff and Venue staff
(June 3)
4. TFull Board presented budgets for authori lzallon (J une 25)

CRDA State Appropriation Allocation Request ¢ - : !
CRDA CTCC™ XL Center * Total Rentschler®
FY21 Appropriation $1,390,821  $6,379,875 . $4, 796,198 $12,566,894 $952,098
FY20 Appropriation $1,390, 821 $4 058,300 $800 000 $6,249,121° > $537,776

- CTCC funding includes convention s services subs1dy program funding of $50,000.
2. XL Center funding supplemented with $1M:of excess revenues from Church St garage.
1. P&W Stadium at Rentschler Field financial results are reported within the operations of the
Office of Policy and Management contained in the Consolidated Financial Statements for the
State of Connecticut and arenot included within the Financial Statements of CRDA.

CT Convention Center  EY21 Operating Budget: $6,329,875

The Connecticut Convention Center'net event revenues through building rental income and through
event services income for rental of equipmeﬂt and decotating. The remaining net event revenues
represents net food and bevelage 1ncome with catered events representing 85% and concession income
representing | 15% RN HEEN

Expenses are d1v1ded into opelatmg expenses ﬁxed costs, and debt service. Operating expenses consists
of all payroll- related: expenses as well as administrative, financial, marketing, and security. Fixed costs
consist of maintenance, u‘tl‘hnes 1nsurance and management fees.

FY21 Net Operatiné'LeslS.of $6,329,875 without CRDA appropriation.
FY20 Projected Net Operating Loss of $4,907,875.

Convention Services Subsidy Program FY21 Operating Budget (expenses): $157.500

Contractual event subsidies are used at the CT Convention Center as a marketing tool to draw business
to the city and the Convention Center that has significant economic impact to the state. The event
inducements, or event subsidies, or event rebates, are used by groups to offset expenses such as
transportation, convention center costs or marketing of the convention. There are guidelines on their use
and a formal approval process within the convention center and CRDA.

3 (2




The convention subsidy program is funded through three sources. The program receives a state
appropriation subsidy, parking subsidy from the CRDA Parking Facilities due to the increased revenue
generated by booking these city-wide events, and interest income.

FY21 Net Operating Loss of $68,500
FY20 Projected Net Operating Gain of $170,242

Front Street District FY21 Operating Budget: $12,271

The Front Street district is funded through two sources. The district receives PILOT revenues from HB
Nitkin, the district’s retail operator, and rental revenue for space owned by CRDA. Operating expenses
consists of insurance, median and bridge maintenance, utilities, snow removal, and misc. expenses.

FY21 Net Operating Gain of $12,271
FY20 Projected Net Operating Gain of $437

The operations and budgets for the Central Utility Plant, CRDA Palkmg Facilities, and Bond
Indenture/Trustee budgets are related to the economic activity gene1ated by the CT Convention Center.
Their revenues are netted together with excess funds sent to the State Tleasmel s Office for the use of
covering CRDA revenue bond debt. : :

Central Utility Plant (CUP) FY21 Operating Budget (. expenses) $2.887, 397 ‘

The central utility plant (“CUP”) is governed by an energy shanng agr eement, admlmstlated by CRDA,
between the Connecticut Convention Cénter, the Marriott Hotel and the Connecticut Science Center
whereby each party is required, among 0the1 thmgs to fund a certam portion of the CUP’s operations,
debt service and capital needs. B :

FY21 Net Operating Gain of $0 i
FY20 Projected Net Operatmg Gain of $0

CRDA Parking F acﬂltles FY21 Opelatlng Budget $3.,362,602

The CRDA Parking Facilities include the garages located at the Connecticut Convention Center, the
Connecticut Science Center, and the two garages on Front Street, Front Street North and South garages.
These garages generate revenues through monthly parking contracts, employee parking, and residential
parking contracts. Additional revenues are generated through convention center and hotel events,
transient parkmg, and parking along Front Street. '

FY21 Net Operating Gain. of $3, 362 602
FY20 Plojected Net Operating Gain of $3,755,930

Bond Indenture/Trustee . FY21 Operating Budget: $3,193,734

Revenues from the CRDA Parking Facilities and the CUP are deposited with the Trustee. CRDA then
allocates a Board-approved budget to fund the expenses of the operations, capital needs, and the costs
associated with the bond debt service. Of these funds, $960,000 is allocated towards the 5-year capital
plan of $4.5 million. Excess funds are sent to the State Treasurer’s Office for the use of covering CRDA
revenue bond debt.

FY21 Net Operating Gain of $2,615,005
FY20 Projected Net Operating Gain of $3,193,734

CT Regional Market FY21 Operating Budget: $26.841

The Regional Market is funded through three sources. The market receives lease revenue for refrigerated
agricultural space, farmers’ market fees, and billboard revenue. Operating expenses consists of
maintenance, utilities, security, facility management fees, and transitional expenses as well as expenses
associated with the farmers’ market and costs associated with one full-time DoAg employee.

4

o




FY21 Net Operating Gain of $26,841
FY20 Projected Net Operating Gain of $135,917

CRDA Office FY21 Operating Budget: $26.918

The CRDA office is funded through numerous sources. The Authority receives a state appropriation,
program administrative fees through its management of capital projects at its venues and throughout the
region as well as origination fees through the residential housing program. The Authority also generates
interest on its residential housing loans as well as accrued interest on its residential housing loans and
non-residential housing investments due to the Authority in the future.

Expenses are for payroll and benefits which is transferred to the State Treasurer and fees including legal,
auditing, information technology, and consulting. Administratiye expenses also include insurance and
office expenses which includes marketing, telephone, and ofﬁce supplles

FY21 Net Operating Gain of $26,918 i
FY20 Projected Net Operating Loss of $20, 281 &

XL Center FY21 Operating Budget: $5 796 198

The XL Center generates operating revenues through rental income, ticket fees and ancillary income
comprised of food and beverage income and from novelty andclub income. Net ticket revenue is not
retained by and is not reflected in the vénue’s financials. Events held at the XL Center include concerts,
UCONN men’s and women’s basketball, UCONN hockey, mlsc “sporting events, and family events.
The AHL hockey operations are recorded as a net sub31dy :

Operating expenses are famhty ovelhead costs 28, Well as: admlnlstl atlve, financial, marketing and sales
expenses. R S

FY21 Net Opelatmg Loss of $5, 796 198 Wlthout deprecnatlon [Funded through State
appropriation and excess revenues from Church: St. garage (CHSG)].

FY20 PIOJected Net Operatmg LOSS of $3 503 537 [offset with CHSG revenues and State
app10p11at10n]

Church S‘ueel Galage FY2l Operatmg Budget $62 139
The Church Street: Garage generates revenues through monthly parking contracts, corporate validations,
transient parking, and through cvents held at the XL Center.

Expenses are payroll and beneﬁts insurance, security, utilities, maintenance, and snow removal.

Garage net operating gam pr0v1des a supplemental operating subsidy to the XL Center as well as
reinvested in capital improvements such as replacement of waterproof membrane and structural repair.

FY21 Net Operating Gain of $62,139 [Includes $1M equity draw for XL Center supplemental

funding]
FY20 Projected Net Operating Gain of $237,187 [Includes $1M equity draw for XL Center supp.
funding]

Pratt & Whitney Stadium (@ Rentschler Field FY21 Operating Budget: $952,098

Financial results of the Stadium at Rentschler Field are reported within the operations of the Office of
Policy and Management contained in the Consolidated Financial Statements for the State of Connecticut
and are not included within the Financial Statements of CRDA.

5 )
(v




Pratt & Whitney Stadium revenues and expenditures are managed through an Operating Account and an

Enterprise Fund, a special revenue fund of the State of Connecticut specifically dedicated to the stadium.

This mechanism assures that revenue from non-UConn events and other event revenues are dedicated to
the venue’s operating expenses and the facility does not have to seek support from the State general
fund. Non-UConn events must produce revenues in excess of expenses and any earnings are retained by
the Enterprise Fund for the facility.

The Stadium generates operating revenues through rental income, ticket fees, and ancillary income
comprised of food and beverage income and from parking fees. Net ticket revenue is not retained by and
is not reflected in the venue’s financials. Events held at the Stadium include UCONN football,
international soccer games, as well as catered and parking lot events. UCONN football attendance based
on UCONN athletic department projections.

Operating expenses are facility overhead costs as well as administrative, financial, marketing and sales
expenses. :

FY21 Net Operating Loss of $952,098 [Includes $250,000 UCONN operating assessment]
FY20 Projected Net Operating Loss of $936 386 [Includes $250,000 UCONN operating
assessment]

The following Board Members shared thoughts/concems 1egald1ng the budgets and venue re-opening:

- Mayor Bronin shared concerns about the use of CRDA cash reserves for C1ty of Hartford
redevelopment, being used to Lmderwute Venue cash needs instead. Alexandra Daum concurred.

- Mayor Bronin also indicated that he would like to use this‘timeframe of no events to do
everything that can be done to do the renovations.at XL so that it can come back stronger after
COVID-19. The ownership issue, with the atrium, needs to be resolved swiftly so that the

investments in the building can be done’ using the fundmg that is already set aside to do the work.

David Robinson‘concurred with the Mayor S assessment
- David Robinson 1nqu11ed as to whether the budgets are conselvatlve or aggressive.
- David Robinson also 1nqu1red about opening timeframes.
- Chairwoman Hopgood asked about the number of employees affected by layoffs.
- Bob Patricelli mquned about COVID funds that may be available regarding reopening.

Michael I 101muth and Joseph Ge1em1a adchessed the concerns of the Board Members.

The following motlon was moved by Dav1d I orgensen, seconded by Mayor Leclerc and unanimously
approved.

“The CRDA Board of Dii‘ec;m's hereby authorizes the State Appropriation FYE2021 Allocation request and
the eleven FYE 2021 Budgets under: the scenarios recommended by management subject to available funds
known as: CT Convention Center; Convention Services Subsidy Program, Front Street District; Central
Utility Plant (CUP); CRDA Parking Facilities; Bond Indentures/Trustee; CT Regional Market; CRDA
Office; XL Center; Church Street Garage; and P&W Stadium at Rentschler Field.”

Executive Director Report

Pearl Street Projects - Chairwoman Hopgood recommended that a tour of the Pearl Street Projects be set up
for any interested Board member, with possible dates forthcoming.

Regional and Economic Development Projects Committee - Chairwoman Hopgood made the following
motion, seconded by Mayor Leclerc. “Bob Patricelli is added to the Regional and Economic Development
Projects Committee.”

Project Closings - Michael Freimuth reported that the financing for the Park and Main and Wyllys Street

projects closed.
(3)

6




July 16 Board Meeting - The scheduled July 16" Board Meeting is Call of the Chair and may be needed to
restructure projects affected by COVID. Please keep this date open.

Adjourned 4:15pm.




Audit & Annual Report
Adoption

- Sent via email 9/15/2020




Venue Update




99111WWO0Y) SNUIA
YiMm passnasip a9 03 sue|d Sujuado-aJ d1j109ds-anusp

SSuUlAesS JO seaJe |euonippy ‘€
3duluado-aJ spJemol S103de} [ed1D T
suollepuswwodal suiuado-ay ‘T

:3UI11U3Sd

uado-aJ 01 sanuaA Joflew Joj Suliedald

suondQ /suonepuswrioddy Sunerdd( sonusA JoleA TZAd

Aoy ueuidopsag <QN”_Q
ey _m_aS Luoyny judwdoaa9(] uorsay rende)



e (09L°6¥T) s 09L°6%1 yoey [e10L
- (009°611) . 009°611 Yooy Jule)
- (091°0¢€) - 091°0¢ Joray [B1Uy
- (6L8¥SL) WTLTE 0Z1°Z80°T onuoAdy g2 SuLie)
- (1ST°006) 195661 TIL66E°T ANUIAFY JUY
e (6LS°L9) LEO'SY 919GT1 20UEBPUNY [€I0],
- (85) 9T 3 SJUSAH JO ISqUINN

aunp (s507) Aienuep Jequisjdes
niy| pasojn uado uadp

aaueLIiep
g Jsedsalo4 vV Jsedalo4 V I1sedalo4 Jebpng
paaoiddy
SA jobpng
it uostreduwon) UOISIAY 1580310 [ZAA

flgreiitel=l8lB als)

JIUS7) UONUIATO)) ININIIUVO))



J3JU80 uUOjuUaALIOD
INDDSULIOD

YLY'PIL (SLE'TEF9) (0SS 9P1°L)

- 90L6E9 90L°6£9

& L§9°SS L59°6S
YLV VIL (TI0°LEL'S) (LY ISH°9)
8LET9E 688°901'C LI9T 69T

- 129°€9 129°€9
€808 90LFEL 62S61T

= 088°56 088°¢6
995 ¢t £61°¢68 090°LEG
<08°86 LE9°0SS THr 619
$81°6E1 £65°89¢€ 9EL7LOS
960°7S¢E FTI'0£9'e) (07T°T86°D)
1L0°6ES 878°00CT°¢ 868°6EL°E
S6T'1 80£°69T €09°0LT
S6TE 061%C S8PLT
001°¢ TTHLI TTLOT
$ZT9¢I 8S0°ZL €89°L8
856°ST $£9°6T £65°¢S
FOL'SH1 T0L°SE0°T SO ISI'T
P60HHE FIETSLL 80r°960°C
(SL6°981) (96Z'6TH) (177D
9€716€ (S¥L°88E) (601°08L)
(zes) 8STL 06L°6
(9zz°9L) (68L°LY) LEPST
(195°66t) & 195°661

(ajqeionejury) sunp Arenuep
/ 8lqeioneo niyy pesoln uado
eoueLeAn g I1seosalod V¥ Jsedalod

@

MOTAIHSVYD ONILLVIAdO IIN

juawaoe[day 10] OAISSY
2A1959Yy sourinsu] Auadold
(1) o01a195 190g

() 20UBUSIWIRIA] PATLI2DY

HAOONI ONILYIAdO JIN
SEOYVHD 0IXI4 TVILOL
sasuadvg paxig 12110
29,1 9AIIUDOU]
29 JuswaSeuBIy
aourInSU]
sammn 0o
sanmun
20UBURIUIBIA] AN[IOB]
SIDAVHD AIXId

JHOAd ONILVIHJO SSOUYD
SHSNAIXH ONILVIHJO TVLOL
SunayIRIA 79 S9[ES
AInoag
2ouBUL]
[BI2UAD) 29 AIBIISIUNUD Y
suoneredo
sjgouag 79 SOXEBL
soSe M 79 Soue[es

SASNAIXT ONILLVIHdO

HAIODNI ONILVIAJO TVLOL
(32u) swoour gwg
SWOAUT I9YIO
(19U) SWOOU] SADMAIIG JUSAT
sy

ANODNI ONILVIHdO

ﬁOmﬁ.ﬂ@EOU UOTISTAIY 1SeIJ0 TCAHA

J9JUS7) UOTIUIAUOT) INI[IIUUO))



15]1USD UONUBALSS
iigtelbte/=]F]Ble o)

120 A|n[ ul anuaA SujuadoaJ Joj aJedald

Tz0Z ABA YSnouyl 4el1s [ewiuiw yiim guilesado snuinuo)
:SUOIIEPUIWWOIDY

(saseyaund Ajied-paiyl a1euiwi(l)
JJe1s |eudaiul yum pawJojiad Suidedspue
pasned aJdueualulEW JO1E|BISD pUE J01BA3|]
:pasn suondwnssy

uosreduwio]) UOISIAIY 1580310 [ZAA

J91US)) UONUIAUOY) INONOIUUO))



uoseas zz0z/120T 11891004 uuo)dn 404 Ayljioeys aledaud

S|eul} 9sso.Joe]
VVON 40} TZ0zZ AejA ul anuaa Suiusdoad Joj aledald

(00G €S SSUINeS) TZOT “EIN Y3noayl 020t 220
(J98euew g4 1SSy 1 Jodaay|spunolo "1ssy) sioAe| Je1s

(uoseas 19220S D4 01U040] JO puU3) 0Z0T "22d/NON
ysnoayl JJe1s pasinquiiad jewiuiw yum guizesado snuijuo)

:SuollepuswOloy

.M -
= .Jm suondQ SunesxddQ 17X

P S
\QE.?? PIPT IS[YOSIUY 1e wnipei§ A\xd

()



Y3LN3O TIX

X

Annnoe/sue|d uoneaousad |elided anuiuo)
TZ0z J1oqwaidas ul anuaA Suiuadoal Joj aiedald

00L‘06TS :s3ulnes [e1o]
([000°56S :s8uines] 22140 xog 8 8100Y) S31d ¢ 03 S314 T 2oNnpay
([000°SOTS :sSulnes] siaxiom Ajjoe) g
3 [00£°06S-/+ :s8uines] jje1s suolresado ) syyohe| jeis

}Je1S jewiluiw yum a1esadQ
:1N220 J0U S0P uoseas THY

020¢ 19qwadaQ Ul anuaA Suluadoal Joj aledald
:(93eJan02 asuadxa %00T @) SINII0 UoSeas THY

(00T TS :s8uines) 314 T Ag Andas 141ys Aep asealda(

(00£°06$ :350D) uosess THY 0Z0¢
1aqwa2a( Joj uonlesedaud ul s314 g Aq Heis suonesado asealou|

:suollepuswiioday
suondQ SunerddQ 17X4

INUID TX

[7)

-



43LN3D X

1 X

Avoeded Joopul ||| @seyd 6T-AINOD ‘¥

sJepua|ed s,3ods ¢ uuodN ‘¢

SUOI3e31|qo |en1oeJ3u0) 23} UOBIINY THY T

sjuswaaJide Juswadeue|p /iopuap/Aled-piiyl ‘T
S1010e4 uonletadQ |eainl) ¢

suondQ SunersdQ 17A4
INUI) TX



Finance Report

e FY2019-2020 Audit Report - see link in email (sent 9-14-2020)
- CRDA & Rentschler Field Stadium
e FY2019-2020 Annual Report - see link in email (sent 9-14-2020)

e Monthly Financial Update




100 Columbus Boulevard

C°R°D°A Suite 500
_ _ Hartford, CT 06103-2819
Capital Region Tel (860) 527-0100

Development Authority Fax (860) 527-0133
www.crdact.net

Financial Update — September 2020

Fiscal Year 2020 Audit and Annual Report

CRDA audit completed with an unqualified opinion
Annual Report completed and ready for filing upon approval
Rentschler Field audit completed with an unqualified opinion

Fiscal Year 2020 Operating Statistics

CT Convention Center —July 2020
Stats: no events scheduled until Jan. 2021 due to state COVID-19 restrictions
July financials: Expenses even with budget

Cash Flow: Payables aged at 90 to 120 days ($400,000)
CRDA advance of $750,000
Cash flow: Sept. — payroll only, Oct. to Nov. — all payables with Q2 appropriation

CRDA Parking Facilities — July/Aug 2020

Aug stats: Utilization of 42% unfavorable to budget by 17%
Monthly rate customers unfavorable to budget by 1,300 at 3,800 YTD
Transient customers unfavorable to budget by 18,500 at 7,500 YTD

July financials: Revenue unfavorable to budget by $192,000 due to downtown opening delay until Jan. 21
Expenses $138,000 favorable compared to budget due to savings in utilities, vehicle ID tag
purchases, credit card fees, and repairs & maintenance
Net Income $54,000 unfavorable to budget

Church Street Garage - July/Aug 2020
Aug. stats: Utilization of 58% unfavorable to budget by 14%
Monthly rate customers unfavorable to budget by 400 at 1,800 YTD
Transient customers unfavorable to budget by 1,750 at 925 YTD
July financials: Revenue unfavorable to budget by $33,000
Expenses $11,000 favorable compared to budget due to savings in utilities and security
Net Income $22,000 unfavorable to budget

XL Center - July 2020
Stats: no events scheduled until Oct. 2020 due to state COVID-19 restrictions
July financials: Operating expenses $42,000 favorable to budget due to personnel savings

Cash Flow: Payables aged at 90 -120 days ($2.2M)
Payables: City: $1.16M, Spectra Corp.: $700,000
CRDA advance of $750,000
Cash flow: Sept. — no payroll, limited payables, Oct. — payroll and limited payables with Q2

appropriation 2 )




P&W Stadium at Rentschler Field - July 2020
Stats: UConn football season cancelled due to COVID-19 restrictions
July financials: Expenses $17,000 favorable compared to budget due to personnel savings

Cash Flow: Payables aged at 120 to 150 days ($800,000)
Cash flow: no payroll or payables
Payables: XL for payroll: $300,000, Spectra Corp.: $200,000

CT Regional Market
Stats: 82 warehouse units and restaurant — Occupancy: 78% with 13 tenants
Activity: Farmers’ Market opened for 2020 season on May 2

July financials: Operating revenue of $64,000 slightly favorable to budget
Operating expenses of $40,200 favorable to budget due to savings in repairs &
maintenance
Net income of $23,800 favorable to budget by $20,900

Dillon Stadium — Calendar Year - July 2020
Calendar year revised operating expense budget of $250,000
July financials: Operating expenses of $121,200 (48% actual vs. 58% of revised annual budget)
Capital reserve balance: $271,000

Central Utility Plant (CUPP) Contract
NEMSI contract extension for CUP operations and maintenance
September 30, 2020 to Dec. 31, 2020




Housing & Neighborhood
Committee




Covid Related Housing Loan Modifications

Whereas the Board was concerned that the Covid pandemic could impact both the construction and the

operation of residential projects supported by CRDA and in anticipation of such impacts, the CRDA

Board of Directors at its April 16, 2020 meeting authorized the Executive Director with the approval of
the Housing and Neighborhood Committee of the Board to review and if need be modify CRDA housing

loans impacted by Covid on a case by case basis;

Whereas the Housing and Neighborhood Committee met on August 4, 2020 and September 10, 2020 to

review several requests from borrowers and has upon its review authorized modifications to several
loans that have been impacted by the pandemic;

Whereas the Housing and Neighborhood Committee approved the forbearance of interest for six
months for 201 Ann Street, a small housing project that experienced a sudden decrease in occupancy
due to Covid relocations of foreign tenants working in Hartford, such deferral of interest being $6000;

Whereas the Housing and Neighborhood Committee approved the forbearance of three months of

interest for 28 High Street that experienced delays in construction and consequently the lease up of the
property, such deferral being $13,145, and authorized the executive director to extend the conversion

date of March 2020 to October 2020 of the construction note into a permanent note;

Whereas the Housing and Neighborhood Committee reviewed the status of 101 and 111 Pearl Street
loans as 111 Pearl Street was experiencing higher operating expenses in part because it was carrying
operating costs of adjoining but incomplete 101 Pearl, because lease up and occupancy were
underperforming due to Covid at 111 Pearl, and recognizing that there was a need to attract more
equity to meet construction cost overruns and the slower lease up/stabilization of 101 Pearl, such
increased capital not being available from CRDA or other lending sources, the committee approved a

forbearance of interest costs for 101 Pearl with such costs added to the principle of the 101 Pearl note

totaling $126,112, and modified its loan terms for 101 and 111 Pearl by decreasing the construction
term interest rate from 3% to 1% and establishing a modified interest rate on the mortgage from the

current 1% per annum with 2% accruing to 1% per annum with the understanding that additional equity

totaling $2.5 million will be invested in the project to cover its expenses, both construction and

operating, with such equity allowed to achieve a preferred rate of return from operations but also with
the CRDA notes being paid down up to fifty percent at the respective refinance points contained in the

primary financing for each property;

Now therefore the Board ratifies such modifications as approved by its Housing and Neighborhood
Committee for the Agency’s loans to 201 Ann St, 28 High Street, and 101/111 Pearl Street.




PRATT STREET INITIATIVE
PHASE I

Background: The Pratt St Initiative is a multi phase program that includes the conversion of the former
commercial properties on Pratt Street; the renewal and expansion of the Temple Street Lofts and
Student Housing Complex; and new development on Talcott St (former G Fox warehouse/garage). The
developer partnership includes Lexington Partners, Laz Investments and Shelbourne Global Solutions.

Phase 1 was approved by CRDA on Oct 17, 2019 and the State Bond Commission on December 18, 2019
and calls for the conversion of two vacant properties (99 Pratt and 196 Trumbull) into 129 units of new
housing. CRDA loans totaling $12M are matched by $14M in conventional bank financing, $3.8 M in
equity and historic credits.

Phase 2 is the conversion/reconstruction of the former ‘townhomes’ on Temple Street originally
launched and operated as 42 student units into 88 conventional units as well as the addition of one unit
at the adjoining ‘lofts’ building (former Sage Allen store) for a total of 47 new units to accompany
another 77 existing units as well as upgrades to various building systems. This phase will be named
“Sage Allen Apartments and Townhomes”. There will be 10% affordable units within the new mix of 166
apartments.

Proposal: The buildings have been acquired and design is in place. The townhomes with 42 4BR units
(student configuration) will be converted to 88 units (58 studios, 13 1BR, 5 2BR and 12 4BR). The lofts
will be increased by one unit, updated with new common areas and general building upgrades, and will
contain 78 units (21 studios, 39 1BR, 18 2BR) for a total project budget of $32.17 million.

Development Budget:

Bank Financing $23,000,000
Equity 7,175,000
CRDA Loan 2,000,000

Total: $32,175,000

Resolution: The executive director is authorized to make a loan to the Pratt Street Initiative Partnership
(or such acceptable single purpose entity) for the purpose of converting and modernizing the former
Temple St lofts and apartments located at 18 Temple Street into 166 units, an expansion of 47 new units
reconfigured into 79 studios, 52 1BR, 23 2BR, and 12 4BR with 10% of the units to be affordable with
such loan not to exceed $2,000,000 with an interest rate of 2.75% beginning upon construction
completion but no later than one year, amortizing over 30 years and subordinate to the first mortgage
subject to 1/ all financing being secured; 2/ approval by the State of Connecticut Bond Commission and
3/ such fiduciary terms as deemed appropriate by the executive director and CRDA counsel.

~




PRATT STREET INITIATIVE
PHASE |

99 Pratt St/196 Trumbull Street
$12M bridge and perm loans - 129 units

Background: Phase 1 of the Pratt St Initiative was approved by CRDA and State Bond Commission in
October 2019 and encompassed two buildings and both short term CRDA bridge loans and longer term
mortgages. The project rebuilds two vacant historic properties across from the XL Center into 129
housing units while preserving/repositioning the retail at the street level. CRDA financing was subject to
the securing of all additional funds including primary bank financing, historic credits, private equity as
well as presenting final budgets/construction costs. In the interim, the final construction costs have
increased from $29.8M to $32.7M but bank financing has been secured by the developers. Additionally,
the developers have completed the renovation of the smaller 196 Trumbull building with private funds
and wish to focus the CRDA loans to just the more expensive and larger 99 Pratt Street component.

Proposal: CRDA dollars would not increase from those already committed and would be used for 99
Pratt and its 97 units and adjoining retail space. Further, an interest to secure/guarantee the CRDA loan
in the adjoining 196 Trumbull will be created thereby giving CRDA the same level of collateral and
resulting number of new units as the initial deal. The CRDA assistance now would be configured into a
$3M bridge loan and a $9M permanent loan with the shorter term bridge loan being repaid upon the
project's initial refinancing (year 5) following primary debt and the remaining equity after historic credit
reimbursements. This is a change from the initial bridge loan at $5.5Mthat was to be repaid by historic
credits from both buildings. The initial permanent loans were based on cash flow mortgages with up to
$2.75% interest, 30 years with a 10 year term. This has been changed to a single loan with a minimum
1% interest, 30 year amortization, 10 year term.

Combined two buildings (initial) 196 Trumbull 99 Pratt
129 units 32 units 97 units
Bank S14.2M S3.8M $10.4M
CRDA $12.0M - $12.0M
Tax Credits $287k 5287k -
Equity $6.2M $4.83M $1.3M

Resolution: The loans totaling $12M for 196 Trumbull St and 99 Pratt St providing 129 units will now be
reconfigured into two loans, totaling $12 million in the form of a short term bridge note of $3M and a
longer term permanent note of $9M for 99 Pratt Street and a security/guarantee interest in 196
Trumbull to CRDA to supplement the collateral of 99 Pratt. Such loans will be amortized at 30 years with
a 1% interest rate with a ten year term, subject to the $3M bridge loan being repaid at the refinancing of
the primary note and equity for 99 Pratt Street, expected to be in year 5.

—




Regional & Economic
Development Committee

-Regional Market Leases

G




Executive Director




GRANT-IN-AID AGREEMENT
FROM
THE CAPITAL REGION DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
TO
THE CITY OF HARTFORD

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Capital Region Development Authority '("”:CRDA”) is a body politic and
corporate created to stimulate new investment within thef-'é'a‘bital region;

WHEREAS, the City of Hartford (the “City”), by and through its Mayor, Luke Bronin, has
requested a grant-in-aid in the amount of Thirty-Seven Thousand Flve Hundred Dollars
($37,500) from CRDA’s Housing Initiative Fund (the ”Funds”)

WHEREAS, the Funds shall be used to assrst the City, invits sole dlscretlon in capturing
federally awarded New Market Tax Credlt (”NMTC") allocatlons R

:\'AG‘R"E:EMENT
NOW, THEREFORE in conslderatlon ofthe foregomg and mutual representations,
warranties, agreement, covenants, and guarantles set forth hereln, CRDA and the City
hereby agree as follows:: 3 VR
1. CRDA hereby agrees to prov:de a grant in- ald in the amount of Thirty-Seven
i Thousand Five. Hundred Dollars ($37, 500) to the City, to be used at the City’s sole
h “discretion, to assrs_t in the capturing of federally awarded NMTC allocations;

2 Thié’grant in-aid s'hlaill" be made‘in one payment during the period beginning August

18, 2020 and endmg December 31, 2020;

3. Such payment shall not commit or bind CRDA to any future funding of the City or its
endeavor to obtal_n NMTC allocations;

4. In the event the City does not utilize the Funds by December 31, 2020, the City shall
return all unexpended Funds to CRDA; and '

5. This Grant-In-Aid Agreement is for the exclusive benefit of the parties hereto and no
rights of third-party beneficiaries are created hereby.

&,



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have duly executed this Grant-In-Aid
Agreement as of the day and year first below written.

CAPITAL REGION DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY,

a body corporate and public constituting a public
instrumentality and political subdivision of the
State of Connecticut

Name: MlchaeIW Frelmuth
Title: Executive Dlrector

CITY OF HARTFORD a Connectlcut municipal
corporatton :

City of Hartford Corpora_t;'f n Counsel
Approved as to Iegai[ty""nd form

Corporatioh Counsel .




MOTION REGARDING THAT CERTAIN
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH
THE CITY OF HARTFORD
RELATING TO
NEW MARKET TAX CREDIT ALLOCATIONS
(the “MOU”)

The CRDA Board of Directors hereby authorizes the Executive
Director to execute such MOU in substantially the same form as
attached hereto.

20 )




Miscellaneous




<< ¥ #Bed uo panunuoed ¢

UEOLISUIY Pased-pPIOJITe] 158 03
JxaTu pajeoo] aq [ doys asgoo o],

‘Burpmg [e10I8TINIeD I00[f-28IU3 213}

1e soeds [aasT-punolb Jo 1es) aTenbs

" o08'z Aybnoi £dnooo o3 eses] & peubls

oy BUTUIT2] PUE S[[LAUTE]] UL SHOREI0]
sejezedo yomym 'eagos Boq reqeg

'sndureo SpISIeAL §]00U0S

DIopIeH] 1B o) 9ZIelASI pue puede

03 jurestr Surp[mg [eI0I9WIIOD 1007

-21enbs-000-5Z ‘TOTTUI-8$ S31 I0f JUe

ey puoDes ty se ‘o) eagon Hod [20sd
pamoss Apyusoaz KiISIBATI) TIMPODD

SuIp|ing [e19JawWwwo

Ayislanlug uimpooy

“108{oxd a1y3 wo gno Burdfaty
st (vaquo) frotyny yusurdoraasg
ﬂn;.mmm _..muﬁmmU ey, "uoruz £'€$

. Hom mﬁon hﬂ..am uy Kzsdoad sewsury
- ¥ : mmmugoﬂmm et pﬂmdon wMOY YT,

mﬂﬂmm,ﬁ ﬂmﬂpdn?m e Jo azout Surzapio

. A J[e871 2YETUB ISP PINOM PIORTEH

3seg pres eyg dn peses] usaq aaey Jetj}

syusunrede mau Sump[m Ui pey se
@H&ﬁmm ssg00ns ot 07 syuted ayg

© 'PepP®

JeyHong dooﬁoahmﬂmn QUET IOATIS

1] JO UOTIEZI[EIIASI BT[] 0] ._H.MO.BH.HO .

" g1 9918 913 J0 quewndojeARpRl 8T,
"s1eyseu-Ayduus pue S[eIUUs|I
pejorxyye asey jey) syosfoad rerquep
-IS8I MBU [T [[e SART] YOTUM — PI0]

-jIeH ptre AINqUOosers) ‘I8ssyouEA] -

Burpnjour — seyrumurwios Butioq
~yBreu syt puryeq 31 Buand soL6T o3
20UlS UOTISTLISTOO JuatyTede mat
Pey 9,USeY UMO] Y3 PTES JSTHong
/ST uewe) Sey 38
-IBUI (1181 9] 8I8UM J0u ST xoq Big,
‘pres ays /pame[; st o1Bo1 yey T,
Treex xoq-Biq 10 1e38ey] IsUjoUE 885
01 15721d PTNOM SJUSPTISAT UMOT TU0S
ybnoys uess 'sjustnyrede 107 e[qEIMS
1SOWI S1 pUe] 8173 PIES JIoyxong

‘038 "red Bop ‘[ood 'ssney
~gruo e Burpniow ‘seyetire UIspotl
03 58200k aney pmem saseyd yog
"eang seqIo] o} spes] 1eys abeaioe uo
(s3mum tIeoIpeg-om] 2E pure WooIpag
-5u0 g/) syusunrede Q0T [SUOTIPPE’
e apnoul pmom sseyd puooss
‘reak qxeu quswidoraasp 10] Apeel oq
Pmoo 2et) soeds [eIoIauUItIoo Jo 188]
arenbs 000z PUE (S3IUN WooIpeq
-om3 7L pue WooIpsd-auo 1ET) SJUSTUL
-yrede ajeI-)eqIeW FOT JO HOIONILS
-T2 SPN[OUT P[NOM SUO 3SEY
"pres JauFong quswidolaasp ELHUSPISaL
asn-paxTu ‘uonTuI-0S$ e Sursodord
43 a3 o3 pepuodssa — dnoar) ojeu
-ordre] Aureduioo jusurdoassp 89e3se
[e21 paseq-pues] spotpy e redioutad
e ‘oyeucidren omuswroq Aq pel — OT1
‘00 Juemdoress(] PIOAIEH 158
‘8q15 o1y dofeaspaa Aerauszod 03 pig
auo pasrecel pue spesodoxd o7 3semb
-21 e paje[dwoo AJpueoal wmog 8T,
justdoleasp [erjuspIsal
asn-psxnu rernuaiod e 10 yyed s
Buzeao jo sadoy ur surer] I8ATS wo Bui
~P[inq SEWSULY) 3SE0MOYS I9ULIOT a1}
pezer Affeuy 0z0z AlTes Ul pIOfIeL]
Jseg Jo Umo] oTfy ‘'sTead 71 AfTesu 10f
azosaks queoea e Bururetal 1095y

_ 2)Is SBWaNl) aseaMoYyS JaulIo-

'pacyTer] 1seqg ur syusuwdoreasp 1ol

-BUI 22.I1}} 913 U0 ojepdn ue SpI8H]
,;sn a0y ssBueyo swrel e 531 ‘ueddey
syosloxd esepy e T Ing,, "Pres oYs
Jeoureysisal Jo 101 e Buroey sa1ang
“ecan 210U ST ety Buryiswos our

Buruonsuex) st pIojIeH iseg,
‘o5 pmoys 1e(ressa xoq-Biq e AUnR

syuepIsal peysTeIss-Guol sasym ‘sell

_-8UTD) 95BOMOUS PO 313 JO 931S 8U3 B
Arremoned 'syusunrede meu jsurebe
Hoequsnd STIOS ST 8I81]} 'PUSSS 'STI1S
Bumstxs Apealre jo syuetdoreAspal
aq 03 pueg s3osfoxd meu os soeds
usdo Jo 103 B 8ABY 3,US20P 31 JSII

RENDERING | CONTRIBUTED

Justudojassp OTIIOU008 03 §8[0e}sqo
MB] B S90E] UMO7] S]] PTES JTeUHong

sxesk §°/ 9se] atp3 107 Butpimq

usaq aA M Jeyy s3os(cad axe esaty],

“pres yeong /deis 1xau o3 Surye;

pue Burysnd daey ‘premio; Bui
-yorews deax 03 st Aydosonyd &4,

eze[d sIopuno  Je Aumut

-uzos gusunTede
plojueH Tenusgod sfTe]
1se7 ‘Iojoaiiq ® JO UOWIPPe 313

awdofansqg
‘Hapjong ua9ji3

pue fued 1]seut
1sBrey e jo ared
se AqisIeAtun UM
-poon Aq paioais
Buraq Buprmg
TEIOTUIUIOD METL
e isyusunyrede
O 831S SEUISUID
9SEOMOU[S JSTIIC]
] ap Jo qustrdolea
-opal feryusjod [SHI0M ST} UL SJUSTIT
-dodasp Ioletu SaIy) SEY TOTM ‘PIOT

-)Ter] J5e Ul STy 181 UL uo SurHiom .

ueaq says yeum Aesioard spet puyy
pumnoib sy go syoefoad rofewr
308 03 — ssoamoes Burpumy pire sTe
-ao1dde Teoo] Burureb o yusurdoraasp’
puE uoneArasuo? Jo sueid o3 sabueya
Bunewr wroxy — sdais [ews Atrewt
se3{2] 31 SUIUesw aTf} ul pue ‘zebuof
Io opeosp e o1 dn axe) weo punoab s
po syueurdoressp Jofewr Burish pres
'sTead JTeY-e-pue-Uaass 10 9]0 Juel

-IN0 I97] UL USsq SBY oYM 1eFong
'sHIOM — SJIqeH Apesig Jo pueT et} Ul
Kqreroadse — jusuzdofsasp STIOUOSS
[Fen 213 70U s381]], WOOS SUIUO SWI0D

07 UIeY3 JO [fe 30edxs 1,u0p ang
"9aIU} SEY JeUHoNG UssIE 103

01y quewdoPas( PIoJRreH 358
Teep Biq e

st auredid ety ur jos{oad zofeux

auo Hurar ‘norostuoy) Ul m

s1030011p JustzdolaAsp 150U 10

W09'SSaUISNGPI0ILEY B 0.euopIogs
oJeuopiog 3aiy Ag

o4} 193f01d Juawdojarap plojyiey 3
Speaj a)is selauly aseamoys -
1¢ [esodoud Juawpiede WoGS

“IOJUIBH 1SB3 Ul 3)IS SeWsUI)

3SEOMOUS JALLID} Ay} U0 3Ing 8¢ pnoa Jey} sjuawpede jequajod Jo Burispual

EE“_ ==




WOISSIUSNGPIOFIE MM « ZOZ P ISNENY = [eiLinof ssauisng pojey o

103auenpy saoinog

0eb'798'6h$ Jaineslany 6L6$
080°30L'921$ ad9]jog umpeoy 002'651$ u“____m_.__ _“_M__EE
005°LL1'Z05$ “d10g saidojouyaay payup - 3 s
) (3107) stafedxey dog PREAp
. |31
ott'z 2oL uw““%”wm ,_“_Hm_a Map waupioy so Auedwog Suijjog m_aﬂ_-augw
aH
96e'e 191 $a0J1Ias [eINIya3) pue et SE
‘2YnUalIs ‘euoissajoly 1150 NAE9H apistonny
68T 9oL sa0us ajsem 2Baljog uimpooy
pue anpensiawpy fauyuy 3 ey
ewdodwy sy §auysnpul Juawwfojdusa dog siefejdury solejy
’ Awowoay .

3 %81 31eJ Jusufojdusaug
b6E'196'118°2S Jsi puesy 6p0'28S Sltiodut plotesney ueipajy
26’67 ajed fjmu enjay L#2es uoge|ndog
'S e} epded tag 8 ade teipayy
000'L69%71Z$ (£10z) anuana! eo) 2L (safu bs) eare puey

- justILianey - Tesauay
piojpey Jseq

<

BH e reiodun pue stomqure we sy, PrRs
aUs ‘siqy wo Aryereo A1sa xem oy Butdn are apy,
ot JuB1z stppewr josfod reroyo ou stezayy,
3 & sBuryy pakefep Ao sey

oﬁhm@ﬂm& BT-CIIAOD 213 yBnots[e ‘Tege] uety.

aauyel ‘reucos usddey ass 03 I PIIoM 2s JeL3
dmyseuyred syestzd-ongnd e se — Fueg 158,
- payeo meu — q08loxd a1} SMSTA JIETEONG
s og Kesaqeb quenzodurt A1ea © s3], Pres
aU[s IO} 03 SUIEO 248U 31 0q Justdorea
-op Aqrsuep-1oybTy 2q 03 pssoddns ses 31 SOLET
ST[} UL 4[N SeM BZ[J SISPUNOI UST M,
PIES JI9THINY "'PIOIIEH UMOJUMOD
wroIy Aeme s, MO auoys € Suteq o eSejueape
axe) PMoo Je justrdoreasp UL I0] 3[qEyms
sjo1 Bunyred £q paraaoo st a31s 810B-5TT 81T,
‘81T 913 UT sjIm. 000"z 03 dn.dojeasp
o3 Teryusjod ® UM 'SJTUN TEIYUOPISI OS 10 0ST
30 INOP[M [erTUT we sejersa wefd ey,
‘sHoe] AUaIINO MO ST YOTgM ‘TOTeUunsep
weqam , fe1d HI0M '9AT], MOUE 37210 0} Tre[d I8

-SBUI JOLIISTP B TO SI08MOIY U0393T, PUe VD -

‘(Braquany Arre £q pey) dnoln JURYOIIN J8I1]
I8UMO mﬁﬁﬂﬁn_ﬁ;p@wnmﬁnmn Sset] wmog S,
sy wﬂmﬁﬁm&m mou 000'z

Lo mﬁﬁg 19700 T8-S USPISaT ST PSFTI.

e 10y pake Bureq ST — 399135 UNIJ U0 I8Mm0]
3010 BZE[d SIPPUNOI PIo-AImjuas-Jey oy —
Burprmg sogo Sqej0u 180T § PIORIEH 1587

'ssaabBoxd pamots sey oruspured s ybnoty ‘pres
TreTTer] ‘Aepd ut s a1e sjosload easouy pue 'sywes
“ne)saI pue ﬂmu»O.Pc_. JUOIIIOATI PUE .N.nanm.E nHﬂmuom =3
JO UOTONISUCD PIpTIUL Jety) uoisia Justudofaasp
-3 SNOYIUIE T PROUMOUIIE UMPCos) ‘QIOE U]
yustzdoressp Jo weld e3seUr Teed-0T
IaBrer sJooos ey Jo Jaed st pue porred Tesd
5o UB 1040 S[[0X Xe) §PIOJITEH IS5BT 03 TWOT]
-[F= €118 an0qe ppe o3 peyosfoxd st Surpning a3
‘aBa1]00 3go1d-10§-30T B ST UMPOOD) SIA
- '9JNO0ISNC SUBDLD
a1} 03 58008 .md..m. Buryred syrs-uo spacid os[e
T 9T "TLMpooD) g Ieas/Aqmoey 00g SWes pue
uonemdod Juspnis Aep 000" a3 203 soeds
B]CIXOTf 9IMYEa] [[M §199435 UBISUT PUe Urel
U0 9318 [eloIsuItnoo oy ‘sueld o3 Surpiosoy
"SI00[ PAY) PUE PU003s 31 Uo sovds a[qeress
Buyuretar oy Adnooo Moo, — SasSatsnd 8730,
PUE 52010 [2oIpatt 'szeqreysa Buipnjots — sjmenay
arour mej o3 dn) fqrnoss pue 1] 'senioe] [eosigd
107 JuspIsad a0lA SULMPOOD) TeIeH Jueilg pres
. “[TeJ ST} STmetuos sJngep Surpima su metm Su
-ersde utBbaq 03 pajoadxe sTe sepreditnos iog.

_ quswdojessp SST-PEXII STJ} 03 JIITIOD 0 JUEU=)}
967 SU3 S2M YOI ‘TOTHY) JpeI) RIowetI Bifeg

EZB]4 Siapuney

"SATI(] SPISIBATY PUNCIR

Pe U0 SIEUT J1 POOUICqUBIST L8AR 300

-1yosTuey &1 30 Aqrrofeut a3 STMO ULMPOOD
. "pres jleymong ‘eaIe
a1y 03 szedojeasp sonue d[eY PIIOTS 38T,

zoB1e] Pue 210UL PImy 03 a1qIssod 51 eI M 2

Tetn parE3sut Buteq st urejsis aSeureIp 18

“BAMUIIONS MAT € pue Juetndoraasp [eusjed =
a1y T 3saTequr Sunpmoys axe szedofeasp TMS

EA
8

RENDERING |

“I8ATy Jnonoeuto) ol Suore sbutpmq m a.r

' panuRUoD SJiI0A] UMO, <<

. 'S0} 8910 BZE]d SISpURC A} pUnoIE sjusunede

amcnm E. dn E.ga_ 0} UOISIA 81 JO mz_._%__m._ L]

e iy
B e




